THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
Aiken County

RECEIVED

JUN 12 2017

SC Court of Appeals

Doyet A. Early, III, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2016-002275

Carlton E. Cantrell,

.....Appellant

v

Aiken County, Aiken County Animal Control / Code
Enforcement Director Bobby Arthurs, Aiken County
Animal Control / Code Enforcement Officer Ron Cooper,
Judge Donna L. Williamson

.....Respondents

AMENDED FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Davidson & Lindermann
Attorneys for Defendants
P.O. Box 8568
Columbia, S.C. 29202
(803) 806-8222

Carlton E. Cantrell, Appellant
223 Muddy Branch Road
Aiken South Carolina 29805
(803) 215-4747

Statement of Issues on Appeal

1. The Appellant Mr. Cantrell was told by the Aiken County Department of Health and Human Resources that rabies shots were only required if a dog bit someone. Mr. Cantrell has never been told otherwise or ever issued a warning for rabies shots by Aiken County.
2. Mr. Cantrell was issued two citations animals at large and failure to vaccinate on dogs that didn't even belong to him, they were strays that his neighbor Marie Fox was feeding. (R. p. 14)
3. Mr. Cantrell's friend Jean B. Smith a legal assistant was kidnaped by Aiken County on July 13, 2015 because she had been working with him on this case.
4. Mr. Cantrell turned in a report to the FBI on Jean Smith missing, and Bobby Arthurs Director of Animal Control who had Junior, and Enn Enlow feeding his dogs razorblades that were inside a fenced in area. (R. p. 7, lines 18-26)
5. The defendants asserts in their defense that they are shielded from liability from their actions on the basis of South Carolina Code Sections 15-78-60(5) and 15-78-70(b), which bar liability on the part of a judicial authority where the act constitutes an exercise of

judicial discretion or judgement, where such act does not involve fraud, actual malice, intent to harm, or crime involving moral turpitude.

6. Officer Cooper just driving down the road and makes statements that are false about dogs in the road, and then writes Mr. Cantrell two Citations for Dogs that don't belong to him is not protected this does not constitute the reasonable exercise of discretion or judgement, where such act does not involve fraud, actual malice.
7. Judge Williamson was out to get Mr. Cantrell from the beginning the way she conducted the trial and the things she said and her actions towards Mr. Cantrell does not constitute the reasonable exercise of discretion or judgement, where such act does not involve fraud, actual malice, intent to harm, or a crime involving moral turpitude.
8. The trial Court's alternative basis for dismissal of the complaint, was its finding that there was no allegation of wrongdoing on the part of Officer Cooper and the Magistrate Williamson. This finding is without basis, and the Court of Appeals should find that there is in fact a jury issue.

Statement Of The Case

It all Began in the summer of 2011, the Appellant Mr. Cantrell had a friend named Junior Enlow watching his house with his grandson Enn Enlow, and Mr. Cantrell left to go to town to get some supplies and when he got back one of his dogs had bitten Junior Enlow on the hand he told Mr. Cantrell that Enn his grandson was picking at the dogs and his hand was on the fence at the time and the dog bit his hand, and he left and went to the emergency room, to get it checked out, Junior was a diabetic.

Mr. Cantrell had another friend Alonzo Willams who help him for a while and he was their the day Aiken County Department of health and Human Resources showed up and requested to see the dog that had bitten Junior, and quarantine the dog for 10 days and told Mr. Cantrell that he had within 10 days to get the dog a rabies vaccination, and Mr. Cantrell asked him about the other dogs needing vaccinations and he said that it wasn't necessary only the dog that hade bitten Junior. Alonzo watched Mr. Cantrell's house while he took the dog to get a rabies shot and he took another dog to keep it company and got both dogs rabies shots Mr. Cantrell had about 25 dogs at this time.

In the Summer of 2012, Junor Enlow was watching Mr. Cantrell's house again with Enn his grandson, he left to go to town to get supplies and after he came back, Junior and his grandson Enn left, just after they left one of his dogs spat up a razor blade, and he found another razor blade where Junior had parked his vehicle, Mr. Cantrell immediately called Junior and asked him if he had been letting Enn feed his dogs razor blades, and he said I won't

bring Enn over thair anymore. Mr. Cantrell Called his veterinarian Lisa Handy and told her what was going on and she said that she would document it.

Jean B. Smith was helping Mr. Cantrell has a friend do his legal papers and was keeping records of things that were transpiring and he told her about the razor blade incident and she also said that she would document it.

Mr. Cantrell got a lady by the name of Jan Voight to watch his house after this he met her when she worked for the Sheriff's Department serving legal papers, which she has done for him several times, she no longer worked for the Sheriff's Department she said that they had set her up to drive a vehicle with drugs in the trunk of the car that she knew nothing about and busted her for drug trafficking, but they couldn't prosecute her because it wasn't her vehicle and their was no evidence to support their allegations, but they fired her from the Sheriff's department and she started her own business animal setting service, she had worked for the Aiken Animal Shelter Before and had connections to clients.

Jan Voight told me that rabies shots were required and Mr. Cantrell told her that isn't what the Aiken County Health and Human Resources Department told me, and she said that they are setting you into a trap, and Mr. Cantrell told here that they would half to issue a warning first and then give him time to get the vaccinations.

There were around 15 stray dogs that Mr. Cantrells neighbor Marie Fox had been feeding and they were staying in her yard at this time and they would run back and forth between his house

and Marie Fox's house, Jan loved animals and made friends with some of them.

Several months went by and Aiken County was trying to destroy Jan Voight's husband's business, he had a dumpster business and a truck to haul the dumpsters with but he was using his yard to store the dumpsters and park the truck also, Aiken County had found an old annex law that went into effect a year before he had started his business and was trying to force him to move or shut down his business. Jan Voight was approached by a Federal Officer which told her that he could order a plane to take her out in just a few minutes, she told Mr. Cantrell about this just before she got scared and left.

After Jan Voight left Mr. Cantrell was forced to get Junior Enlow to watch his house again, and it wasn't long that another dog bit Junior worse than the last time, it needed stitches, Mr. Cantrell told him to go to the emergency room because he was diabetic and that he would get the dog a rabies shot, and he said I am not going to go and you don't need to get the dog a rabies shot. Junior has picked at these dogs for years and dogs don't like this kind of behavior, and they don't forget.

It was during this time that Mr. Cantrell's neighbor Marie Fox had quit feeding the dogs that were staying in her yard and people driving by were throwing food into the road in front of his house and keeping the stray dogs in the road. (R. p. 12, lines 1-4)

About this time an old friend name Ryan Gunter came over this was on July 1, 2015 and said that he would watch Mr. Cantrell's house because he needed some extra money, and that would cut loose Junior. Mr. Cantrell told him that he needed to go to town tomorrow and get some supplies, this would be July 2, 2015 and

that Junior was going to come over in the morning, but Mr. Cantrell would call Junior and tell him that you will be watching my house for a while. Mr. Cantrell tried to call Junior several times but he wouldn't answer the phone.

Ryan Gunter came over at 8am and Mr. Cantrell left fore town and it wasn't long before Ryan called him and told him that someone was in his driveway in a small car. And Junior called Mr. Cantrell right after this, and said he was at his gate, and that Ryan was in his yard and Mr. Cantrell told Junior that he had been trying to call, and told Junior that he could go back home because Ryan was watching his house and Junior said that ill weight hear till you get home, and right after this Ryan Gunter calls Mr. Cantrell back and says that there are three Animal Control Officers setting in the road behind Junior, Mr. Cantrell said that he would be back home in about 20 min. (R. p. 2, line 1-p. 3, lines 1-4)

When Mr. Cantrell arrived Animal Control had his drive way and the road blocked so Mr. Cantrell had to park on the other side of the road on his other property, the Officers were standing around with their cameras but there were no dogs around and Mr. Cantrell walked across the road and Officer Cooper said that they were responding to a complaint from his neighbor about dogs in her yard and Mr. Cantrell told them that those where her dogs that she had been feeding them, then seven of the stray dogs that his neighbor Marie Fox had been feeding came out into the road, and Officer Cooper started writing a citation for dogs at large and asked Mr. Cantrell how many dogs are in the road while the other officer was taking pictures. Then they proceeded to write Mr. Cantrell another citation for failure to vaccinate, Mr. Cantrell asked officer what about his neighbor's complaint he said were

not concerned about that right now were concerned about dogs in the road. (R. p. 3, lines 5-18)

Mr. Cantrell told Officer Cooper that you half to issue a warning before you can issue a citation and one of the other officers said that in your case we don't half to. Mr. Cantrell told the Officer that he already had a civil complaint against Animal Control for violating procedures, and the Officer said that were under a new umbrella now that doesn't matter, they had a symbol of a light house on the door of their trucks that said Code Enforcement.

Mr. Cantrell asked Officer Cooper about dogs crossing the road since the road goes through his property and he said so long has you're with the dogs it's all right. Then Officer Cooper handed Mr. Cantrell the citations and told him that you better not show up in Court without these rabies vaccinations that meant that they were going to lock Mr. Cantrell up and Officer Cooper said that we may come back and wright you up again before the Court date. (R. p. 3, lines 19-25)

After the Officers left Junior Enlow who had been talking with the Officers before Mr. Cantrell arrived said their going to lock you up and take everything that you own away from you. (R. p. 4, lines 1-3)

After Junior Enlow left Ryan Gunter said that there were no dogs in the road the whole time that Animal Control came up and sat their waiting for you to come home until you got out of your vehicle and walked over to them than the dogs ran down where you were.

On July 13, 2015, Mr. Cantrell got a call from Ryan Gunter and he said that Jean Smith had been reported missing from her home.

Mr. Cantrell knew that Aiken County had done something with Jean Smith because they were working together, and they didn't want her to help him so Mr. Cantrell went to the FBI Office in Columbia and talked with an Officer and gave him some papers describing his relationship with Jean B. Smith and what he knew about her and that he was certain Aiken County had done something with her, and also turned in a report on Bobby Arthurs and Junior and Enn Enlow, feeding his dogs razor blades, and bringing up false charges against Mr. Cantrell. That night on the news Sheriff Hunt said that they were going to discontinue their search for Jean Smith.

On the day of the Court hearing their attitude had changed and Mr. Cantrell requested a Jury Trial and picked Jurors, Mr. Cantrell used up all his strikes on the 6 primary Jurors and officer Cooper picked the 6 secondary. Mr. Cantrell requested and filled out two subpoenas one for Junior Enlow and the other for his Neighbor Marie Fox, for the trial which was scheduled on August 26 2015. (R. p. 4, lines 4-8)

On the way out to his vehicle Officer Ashe asked Mr. Cantrell how many dogs did he own and told him that he had better get at least half of them vaccinated within 5 days or he would write him another citation, which he never did show up. (R. p. 4, lines 9-13)

On the day of the trial August 26, 2015 Mr. Cantrell had a friend by the name of Don Tran, who watched his house and Ryan Gunter took him to Wagner South Carolina where the trial was scheduled, for 9:30 am, he was going to do the trial pro sa. (R. p. 4, lines 14-17)

Just before the trial began Mr. Cantrell heard Officer Cooper tell Officer Ashe that Judge Williamson had another Trial scheduled at 10:30 am. (R. p.4 lines 18-20)

Then Judge Williamson came in and said that we should be able to do this whole trial from start to finish within 35 minutes.

Judge Williamson had already dismissed 5 of the primary jurors that Mr. Cantrell had picked, and replaced them with the jurors that Officer Cooper had picked. (R. p. 4, lines 21-25)

Officer Cooper took the stand and said that they three of them were just driving down Muddy Branch Road and seen dogs in the road and they stopped and waited for the owner and issued two citations for dogs at large and failure to vaccinate. (R. p. 5, lines 1-4)

Mr. Cantrell told the Jurors that the resin Officer Cooper said they had stopped was because of a complaint from his neighbor Marie Fox whom he had subpoena to come to court and she wasn't even there, and Officer Cooper said that this has nothing to do with this and Judge Williamson said the same. (R. p. 5, lines 4-7)

Officer Cooper showed the Jurors pictures of the dogs in the road and every picture had Mr. Cantrell in the picture and that Officer Cooper said that the dogs could be in the road so long as he was with them, (if there were dogs in the road all the time than why weren't there any pictures of the dogs in the road taken before he arrived home from town.) (R. p. 5, lines 8-14)

Junior Enlow took the stand and he had changed his story from what he had told Mr. Cantrell and said that there were dogs in the road the whole time. (R. p. 5, lines 15-17)

Mr. Cantrell complained to Judge Willamson about his neighbor Marie Fox which he had subpoena was no their, so he told Judge Willamson that Marie Fox was not here and that this trial must be rescheduled, and Judge Willamson said all right with an angry voice and left the Court Room and for a while and came back and said that she was on her way and would be here in about 45 min. (R. p. 5, lines 18-23)

Junior Enlow requested to leave because he said that he was headed to Montana, Mr. Cantrell told Judge Willamson that he might want to ask him some more questions later, on the stand but Judge Willamson let him and his wife go. (R. p. 5, lines 24-27)

Judge Willamson said that let's continue on with this trial while we are waiting for Marie Fox, (since Junior Enlow had lied about the dogs being in the road the whole time) Mr. Cantrell said that he had another witness, Ryan Gunter and that he was in his truck in the parking lot, Judge Willamson sent Office Cooper to get him.

Ryan Gunter took the stand and said that the dogs were with him the whole time since the Officers pulled up and didn't go down to the road until Mr. Cantrell got out of his vehicle and was talking with the Animal Control Officer. (R. p. 6, 6-10)

Marie Fox came in and took the stand and said that she had been feeding between 10 to 15 dogs, and that they had been staying in her yard. And Officer Cooper said that this had nothing to do with this, and Judge Willamson agreed and Mr. Cantrell said that this has everything to do with this because these dogs were the ones that she had been feeding, and they were staying on her property, and Mr. Cantrell said that Officer Cooper said that she had called in a complaint on him, and Marie Fox said that she had never called in a complaint. (R. p. 6, lines 11-19)

The Jurors that Officer Cooper Picked found Mr. Cantrell guilty and Judge Willamson fined him a total 957.98 in fines, and she said if you don't pay it today I will lock you up for 30 days, and had already called in an arresting officer because they knew that Mr. Cantrell didn't have that kind of money in his bank account but his Bank First Citizens honored that request. (R. p. 6, 20-25)

After Mr. Cantrell got home he called the Wagner Courthouse and requested a copy of the transcript and Judge Willamsons clerk said that we don't do transcripts anymore and they hung up the phone on him. (R. p. 11, lines 5-8)

After this Mr. Cantrell decided to file a Civil Complaint, against Aiken County, Animal Control Director Bobby Arthurs, Officer Cooper, and Judge Donna Willamson.

FACTS

1. Junior Enlow and his grandson Enn Enlow had been picking at the dogs and Junior got bitt and went to the emergency room and they contacted the Aiken County department of Health and Human Resources which said that rabies vaccinations were only required if the dog had bitten someone, and quarantined the dog for 10 days and Mr. Cantrell got a rabies vaccination for that dog and another one.
2. Junior Enlow and his grandson Enn Enlow had been feeding Mr. Cantrell's dogs razor blades for quite some time because they were spitting up blood and squirting blood out the ass and several died, he found the evidence when they left one day and one of the dogs spat up a razor blade in front of him right after they left, and they had dropped one where they were parked. Mr. Cantrell called Junior right away and told him so and Junior said I won't bring Enn over thair anymore. (R. p. 7, lines 18-24)
3. Mr. Cantrell called his veterinarian Lisa Handy about Junior and Enn Enlow feeding his dogs razor blades and he told her that they were related to the Director of Animal Control Bobby Authors and that he had them doing this terrible thing to make his dogs sick and she said that she would document it, and he also called Jean B. Smith and told her she was keep his legal records for him at the time.

4. Jan Voight started watching Mr. Cantrell's house, and she told him that rabies shots were required, and he told her that the Aiken County Department of health and Human Resources told him that they were only required if a dog bites someone, and she said their setting you up in a trap, and he told her that they half to issue a warning and give him time to vaccinate the dogs.
5. After this Jan Voight had been threatened by a federal Officer stating that he could have her taken out by a military aircraft right now, she told me and got scared and then she quit watching Mr. Cantrell's house.
6. Junior came back without Enn and it wasn't long before he had gotten bit by a dog again it needed stitches and he refused to go to the doctor and Mr. Cantrell said that he would get a rabies shot for that dog and Junior said forget the rabies shot. Junior didn't want the Department of Health to tell me to get all the dogs rabies shots because, Bobby Arthurs had planned with Junior to set Mr. Cantrell in a trap.
7. Mr. Cantrell's neighbor Marie Fox had been feeding 10-15 dogs in her yard for several months, and she stopped feeding the dogs and people were throwing food in the road in front of his house as to keep the dogs into the road in front of his house. This was also orchestrated by Aiken County, with his neighbor Marie Fox to set him in a trap by using these stray dogs. (R. p. 6, lines 11-13)

8. Mr. Cantrell was going to town on July 2, 2015 to get supplies and a friend named Ryan Gunter said that he needed some extra money and that he would watch his house, and Mr. Cantrell tried to call Junior to tell him not to come but he wouldn't answer his phone. (R. p. 2, lines 1-11)
9. Junior deliberately didn't answer his phone because he had planned this with Animal Control, and they were going to do this no matter what, so he deliberately came over and blocked the gate where Mr. Cantrell couldn't come into his drive.
10. Three Animal Control Officers with three Trucks showed up right after Junior, and parked right behind Junior, blocking the roadway, which forced Mr. Cantrell to park on the other side of the road.
11. Animal Controls plan was to get dogs in the road by stopping in front of Mr. Cantrell's house in the road and walking around with cameras, and Ryan Gunter said the dogs never went down where they were, and Junior Enlow lied and said that the dogs were in the road the whole time.
12. After Mr. Cantrell got out of his vehicle and walked over to Officer Cooper, and talked with him for a few minutes seven stray dogs came down to the road where he was and then they were taking pictures of the dogs, and Officer Cooper started writing citations. And Officer Cooper even said that the dogs could be in the road so long as you're with them, and every picture that they took of the

dogs Mr. Cantrell was in the picture with them. (R. p. 3, lines 1-18)

13. After the Officers left Junior Enlow said exactly what their plan was to lock you up and take everything you owned away from you. (R. p. 4, lines 1-3)
14. The dogs that Officer Cooper wrote the Citations for in the road were the strays that Mare Fox had been feeding and were staying in her yard.
15. Officer Cooper said don't show up for Court without these rabies shots, that meant they were going to lock me up without a trial. (R. p. 3, lines 22-25)
16. Mr. Cantrell tried to contact Jean B. Smith, but she wouldn't answer her phone. Ryan Gunter told him several days later that he heard that she was missing, from her home on July 13, 2015. Mr. Cantrell is sure that Aiken County has moved her somewhere and claimed her missing in order to keep her from helping him.
17. Mr. Cantrell turned in a report to the FBI just before his Court hearing in Monetta SC, of July 23, 2015 on Jean B. Smith missing, and Bobby Arthurs , Director of Animal Control who had Junior Enlow and Enn Enlow feeding his dogs razor Blades, that they were doing this so that they could make the dogs sick so that they could file other citations against him.

18. The next day Sheriff Hunt was on the news stating that they were discontinuing their search for Jean Smith, they were no longer trying to lock Mr. Cantrell up, so he requested a jury trial and picked jurors.
19. On the day of the Jury Trial Mr. Cantrell had a friend named Don Tran, watch his house and Ryan Gunter drove him to the Courthouse in Wagner.
20. Judge Willamson had two Trials scheduled that day Mr. Cantrells was at 9:30 am the other one was at 10:30am this means Judge Willamson expected to do this rilly fast according to what Officer Cooper told Officer Ashe in the Court Room, and when Judge Willamson came into the Court Room she said we should be able to do this whole Trial from start to finish within 35 min. (R. p. 4, lines 18-23)
21. Judge Willamson immediately dismissed 5, of the primary jurors that Mr. Cantrell had picked with his strikes and replaced them with the ones that Officer Cooper had picked. (R. p. 4, lines 25-27)
22. Officer Cooper stated that they just happened to be riding down Muddy Branch Rd. and seen dogs in the road and stopped and waited for the owner. Why would three Animal Control trucks just be riding down Muddy Branch Rd. The only evidence that Officer Cooper had was pictures that they had taken after Mr. Cantrell had arrived back home then the dogs came down to meet him, while he was talking with them, and he was in the pictures. Ryan Gunter was

watching Mr. Cantrells house at the time and said there never were any dogs in the road while he was gone to town. (R. p. 5, lines 1-13)

23. Everything that Mr. Cantrell said and questions that he asked during the trial, Officer Cooper and Judge willamson would say that this has nothing to do with this.
24. The trial was started without Marie Fox being thair and Mr. Cantrell had subpoena her and she was never contacted until he complained about it, and then Judge Willamson called her at home and told her to come. (R. p. 5, lines 17-22)
25. Marie Fox said that she had been feeding 10-15 dogs and that they were staying in her yard, why wasn't she issued these citations for dogs at large and failure to vaccinate. (R. p. 6, lines 13-14)
26. Junior Enlow was in a hurry to get out of their so he asked permission to leave and judge Willamson let him go, Mr. Cantrell said that he had more questions that he wanted to ask him but he didn't want to answer them. (R. p. 5, lines 23-25)
27. Judge Willamson called in an arresting Officer to arrest Mr. Cantrell before he even paid his fine because they knew that he didn't have the money in his account and Judge Willamson told him that she was going to lock him up for 30 days If he didn't pay this fine that day. (R. p. 11, lines 1-4)

28. When Mr. Cantrell got home, he called Judge Willamsons Office and requested a copy of the transcript, and Judge Willamson told the secretary to tell Mr. Cantrell that we don't do transcripts anymore, and then she hung up the phone on Mr. Cantrell. (R. p. 11, lines 6-9)

Arguments

Aiken County was using the Aiken Health and Human Resources Department to mislead Mr. Cantrell about these rabies shots.

Aiken County changed the name of Animal Control to Code Enforcement to get around a Civil Complaint where they violated procedures and took Mr. Cantrell's animals in 2005 and brought damages onto him.

Bobby Arthurs Director of Animal Control had Junior and his grandson Enn Enlow feed Mr. Cantrell's dogs razor blades to make the dogs deathly sick to bring more false citations against him.

Aiken County had Mr. Cantrell's Neighbor Marie Fox too feed stray dogs in her yard for several months and quit feeding them and then had people throw out food in the road in front of his dwelling place to keep the dogs in the road in front of his house.

These stray dogs were being used as a stepping stone to write Mr. Cantrell a citation for the rabies shots without giving him a warning which is required by law.

This was an attempt by Aiken County using this Magistrate Donna Williams to lock Mr. Cantrell up and take everything away from him.

Aiken County removed Jean B. Smith from her premises to make sure there wasn't any one who could help bail him out.

The reason that Aiken County is determined to get rid of Mr. Cantrell is because Aiken County is bringing in millions in Cocaine every day around his dwelling place with the local law enforcement protecting and also distributing it, all his neighbors are involved and are being used to attack Mr. Cantrell, who is not a team player.

Conclusion

It all started in 2011 when Junior was bitten by one of the Appellant Mr. Cantrell's dogs, because Juniors grandson Enn was picking at the dogs and Junior had his hand inside of the fence, while Mr. Cantrell was gone to town to get supplies, and Junior went to the emergency room because he was diabetic. The Aiken Department of Health and Human Resources quarantined the dog for 10 days and told him that he had to get that dog a rabies shot and Mr. Cantrell asked about the others and he said only if a dog is known to bite someone does it need a shot, Alonzo Williams was their has a witness.

The reason Junior was bringing Enn over at the time was because, DSS had given him custody of Enn and his brother JoJo, because of their other brother's death by being shot by their half-brother, Junior says that they were fighting over a woman but Bobby says it was an accident Junior was very angry with Bobby at this time, these boys were Bobbys sisters children she was married to Juniors son but already had a boy by someone else, Junior says that his son the farther of these boys got killed in a work related accident.

Both boys were given custody to Bobby Arthurs mother after this for a while until Enn got caught stealing their neighbor's guns and then DSS gave custody back to Junior and he started bringing Enn Back over again while he was watching Mr. Cantrells house. Enn was getting in fights at school and got expelled from school several times this happened, Mr. Cantrell believes Bobby Authors had him do this so that Junior would bring him over, and that's when they started feeding his dogs razor blades.