THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM AIKEN COUNTY
Doyet A. Early, III, Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2016-002275

RECEIVED

APR 13 2017

SC Court of Appeals

Carlton E. Cantrell,Appellant,

v.

Aiken County, Aiken County Animal Control/Code Enforcement Director Bobby
Arthurs, Aiken County Animal Control/Code Enforcement Officer Ron Cooper,
Judge Donna L. Williamson
.....Respondents.

INITIAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS

Daniel C. Plyler
DAVIDSON & LINDEMANN, P.A.
1611 Devonshire Drive
Post Office Box 8568
Columbia, South Carolina 29202
(803) 806-8222

Counsel for Respondents

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

ARGUMENT

In Appellant's Notice of Appeal and Brief, Appellant fails to actually address any of the grounds for dismissal and/or summary judgment listed in Judge Early's Order, and instead attempts to rehash the purported facts that he believes shows he was wrongfully convicted on the two Animal Control citations at issue. The closest Appellant appears to come to actually addressing any of the purported grounds for summary judgment is on page 4-5 of his initial brief where he states the following:

The defendants asserts [sic] in their defense that they are shielded from liability from their actions on the basis of South Carolina Code Sections 15-78-60(5) and 15-78-70(b), which bar liability on the part of a judicial authority where the act constitutes an exercise of judicial discretion [sic] or judgement [sic], where such act does not involve fraud, actual malice, intent to harm, or crime involving moral turpitude.

Initial Brief of Appellant, pg. 4-5, ¶ 5.

However, as is set forth above and is clearly shown by a review of Judge Early's Order at issue, Judge Early's decision to grant Respondents' motion was not based on S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-60(5) or S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-70(b)¹.

¹ Judge Early did find as an alternative, sustaining ground for summary judgment for the individual Respondents, that Appellant's allegations clearly showed those individual Respondents were working within the scope of their official duties at all times relevant to the matters alleged in the Complaint, and therefore found that they were entitled to summary judgment pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-70(a). *See*, Order of Judge Early, pg. 6-7.

Furthermore, Appellant has not even mentioned, nor has he attempted to appeal, the actual rulings made by Judge Early in the Order granting summary judgment to Respondents.

In *Folkens v. Hunt*, 290 S.C. 194, 348 S.E.2d 839 (Ct. App. 1986), this Court held that “[a]n alternative ruling of a lower court that is not excepted to constitutes a basis for affirming the lower court and is not reviewable on appeal.” *Folkens*, 348 S.E.2d at 845. Such a ruling becomes the law of the case. *Id.* See also, *Eagles v. South Carolina National Bank*, 301 S.C. 402, 392 S.E.2d 187 (Ct. App. 1990). Because Appellant did not appeal from the alternative rulings by Judge Early dismissing this matter in its entirety, the dismissal must be affirmed.

Therefore, Respondents assert that this Court need go no further in its analysis of Judge Early’s October 27, 2016 Order dismissing the Appellant’s Complaint. However, Respondents assert that Judge Early’s decision was correct, in its entirety, as is set forth in detail below.

I. The Order dismissing the Complaint was appropriate.

Respondents argue that the order issued by Judge Early, dismissing the Appellant’s Complaint and granting summary judgment on behalf of Respondents, was appropriate on all stated grounds. Judge Early found that the Complaint failed

to comply with the requirements of Rule 8(f), SCRPC, and therefore was subject to dismissal.

Judge Early further found that to the extent the Complaint was construed to raise a claim of malicious prosecution, Appellant had failed to plead facts sufficient to establish such a claim. In order to recover on a claim of malicious prosecution, Appellant must establish the following elements: “(1) the institution or continuation of original judicial proceedings; (2) by or at the instance of the defendant; (3) termination of such proceedings in the plaintiff’s favor; (4) malice in instituting such proceedings; (5) lack of probable cause; and (6) resulting injury or damage.” *McBride v. Sch. Dist. Of Greenville County*, 389 S.C. 546, 566, 698 S.E.2d 845, 855 (Ct. App. 2010). “In an action for malicious prosecution, the plaintiff must establish that the criminal proceeding was terminated in his or her favor.” *McKenney v. Jack Eckerd Co.*, 304 S.C. 21, 22, 402 S.E.2d 887, 887 (1991).

As Judge Early correctly found, Appellant admitted in his Complaint that he was convicted, by a jury, on the two criminal citations at issue. As a result Appellant cannot establish the elements necessary to sufficiently allege a malicious prosecution cause of action, because he cannot possibly establish that the proceedings had terminated in his favor.

Additionally, Judge Early correctly found that even if the court was to construe Appellant's Complaint as an attempt to appeal the magistrate court convictions at issue, the Complaint would be subject to dismissal. Specifically, an appeal of a magistrate court conviction must be filed as a notice of appeal within ten (10) days of the date of the conviction. *See*, S.C. Code Ann. § 18-3-30. Appellant admits in his Complaint that he was convicted on August 26, 2015. (R.). However, his Complaint is dated September 13, 2015, and was not filed until September 22, 2015. (R.). Therefore, as Judge Early correctly found, even if the Complaint had been properly drafted as a notice of appeal of the magistrate court convictions, it would still be time-barred and must be dismissed.

Judge Early also correctly found that no matter how Appellant's Complaint is construed, it clearly attempts to allege causes of action against Respondent Williamson that deal with Respondent Williamson's actions in presiding over his magistrate court trial. (R.). As such, Judge Early correctly found that Respondent Williamson, a Magistrate Court Judge, was entitled to Judicial Immunity. This is true under both the common law of South Carolina, as well as certain provisions of the South Carolina Tort Claims Act. *See, O'Laughlin v. Windham*, 330 S.C. 379, 498 S.E.2d 689 (Ct. App. 1998); *see also*, S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-70(1) and (2).

Furthermore, Judge Early also correctly found that even a liberal construction of Appellant's Complaint would be subject to dismissal pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-60(4) and (23). S.C. Code Ann. §15-78-60(4) provides, in pertinent part, that a governmental entity is not liable for a loss resulting from the enforcement of any law and/or ordinance. Judge Early reasoned that a liberal reading of Appellant's Complaint makes it clear that he attempting to sue Respondents Aiken County, Arthurs, and Cooper for their roles in enforcing the animal control ordinances of the county of Aiken. Therefore, Judge Early found, with the admission made by Appellant in his own Complaint "that he was convicted by a jury, Appellant's allegations are clearly barred and must be dismissed." (R.).

Likewise, S.C. Code Ann. §15-78-60(23) states that a governmental entity is not liable for a loss resulting from the "institution or prosecution of any judicial or administrative proceeding." Judge Early correctly found that Appellant appears to be attempting to sue Respondents Aiken County, Arthurs, and Cooper for that very reason, the "institution or prosecution" of the animal control citations at issue.

Additionally, as is stated above, Judge Early correctly found that Respondents Arthurs and Cooper are entitled to absolute employee immunity under the South Carolina Tort Claims Act, S.C. Code Ann. §§ 15-78-10 *et seq.* The SCTCA "constitutes the exclusive remedy for any tort committed by an employee of a governmental entity." S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-70(a). An employee

of a governmental entity is immune from liability for tortious acts committed within the scope of his or her official duties. *Flateau v. Harrelson*, 355 S.C. 197, 584 S.E.2d 413 (Ct. App. 2003).

Judge Early correctly found that Appellant's Complaint, at best, makes claims against those Respondents for actions and/or omissions taken in the course of their official duties as employees of the County of Aiken. Therefore, Judge Early was correct in dismissing Appellant's Complaint against those Respondents for that reason.

Lastly, Judge Early found that Appellant's Complaint was subject to dismissal pursuant to the doctrine of *res judicata* and/or collateral estoppel. Judge Early reasoned, correctly so, that "once a person has been criminally convicted, the person is bound by that adjudication in a subsequent civil proceeding based on the same facts underlying the criminal conviction." *Doe v. Doe*, 346 S.C. 145, 148, 551 S.E.2d 257, 258 (2001); *see also, Zurcher v. Bilton*, 379 S.C. 132, 135-136, 666 S.E.2d 224, 226 (2008). As has been stated at length above, Appellant's central claim in his Complaint is that he believes he should not have been found guilty on the two animal control citations at issue, and therefore his Complaint is clearly an attempt at collaterally attacking those convictions. Therefore, Judge Early correctly ruled that Appellant's Complaint must be dismissed.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing discussion and analysis, the Respondents respectfully request that this Court affirm the October 27, 2016 order of the Honorable Doyet A. Early, III, dismissing the Appellant's Complaint and granting summary judgment on behalf of the Respondents.